ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVMM TTEE
April 10, 2007
8:.06 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Represent ati ve Bob Roses, Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghill
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen
Representative Crai g Johnson
Represent ati ve Andrea Dol |
Representati ve Max G uenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTI ON NO. 7

Proposi ng amendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
to avoid the use of personal pronouns and simlar references
t hat denote masculine or fem nine gender in that docunent.

- MOVED CSHIJR 7(STA) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 15
Supporting the passage of a Filipino Veterans Equity Act and a
Filipino Veterans Fam |y Reunification Act.

- MOVED CSHIJR 15(STA) QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 193
"An Act relating to the conposition of the Al aska Police
St andards Council; and providing for an effective date."
- MOVED CSHB 193( STA) QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COWMM TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HIR 7
SHORT TITLE: CONST AM GENDER- NEUTRAL REFERENCES
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) GATTO

01/ 30/ 07 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- April 10, 2007



01/ 30/ 07 (H) STA, JUD, FIN

04/ 03/ 07 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106
04/ 03/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d

04/ 03/ 07 (H) M NUTE( STA)

04/ 10/ 07 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106
BILL: HIR 15

SHORT TITLE: WM 11 FILIPI NO VETS: BENEFI TS/ | MM GRATI ON
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) LEDOUX

03/ 29/ 07 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 29/ 07 (H MV, STA

04/ 03/ 07 (H M.V REFERRAL WAl VED

04/ 10/ 07 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 193
SHORT TITLE: POLI CE STANDARDS COUNCI L MEMBERSHI P
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) ROSES

03/ 12/ 07 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
03/ 12/ 07 (H STA, FIN

04/ 03/ 07 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

04/ 03/ 07 (H) <Bi |l Hearing Cancel ed>

04/ 10/ 07 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

SANDRA W LSQON, Intern

to Representative Carl Gatto

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Responded to concerns expressed by
commttee nenbers during a prior hearing on HIR 7, on behalf of
Representative Gatto, prime sponsor.

REPRESENTATI VE CARL GATTO

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Ofered brief comment as prinme sponsor of
HIR 7.

NORMAN COHEN, St af f

to Representative Max G uenberg

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: O fered clarification during the hearing on
HIR 7.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- April 10, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE GABRI ELLE LEDOUX

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HIR 15 as prine sponsor.

CHRI STI NE MARASI GAN, St aff

to Representative Gabriell e LeDoux

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Ofered clarification regarding HIR 15 on
behal f of Representative LeDoux, prinme sponsor.

CRYSTAL NOVOTNEY, Staff

to Representative Bob Roses

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded comment during the hearing on HB
193 on behal f of Representative Roses, prine sponsor.

JOHN CYR, Executive Director

Publ i c Safety Enpl oyees Associ ati on ( PSEA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 193.

TERRY VRABEC, Executive Director

Al aska Police Standards Council (APSC)

Department of Public Safety

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 193.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

VICE CHAIR BOB ROSES called the House State Affairs Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 8:06:17 AM Represent ati ves
Coghil 1, Johansen, Johnson, Guenberg, Doll, and Roses were
present at the call to order. Representative Lynn arrived as

the neeting was in progress.

HIR 7- CONST AM GENDER- NEUTRAL REFERENCES

8:07: 08 AM

VI CE CHAIR ROSES announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 7, Proposing anendnents to the
Constitution of the State of Alaska to avoid the use of personal
pronouns and simlar references that denote rmasculine or
fem ni ne gender in that docunent.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 10, 2007



8:07:41 AM

SANDRA WLSON, Intern to Representative Carl Gatto, Al aska State
Legislature, responded to concerns expressed by comittee
menbers during a prior hearing on HIR 7, on behalf of
Representative Gatto, prinme sponsor. She explained that the
resolution sinply proposes to substitute all masculine pronouns
with titles. For exanple, she said, "his" mght be "governor."
The neani ng, she added, would not be changed.

8:08:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he had requested a |egal opinion on
HIR 7, as well as conducting a thorough search of the
| egislation hinmself, to discern whether or not the resolution
woul d have any uni ntended consequence. He directed attention to
a sentence from[a nmenorandumin the commttee packet, from Jack
Chenowet h, Assistant Revisor, Legislative Legal and Research
Services, dated April 4, 2007], which read as foll ows:

The material in the resolution is arguably wholly
technical and not intended to nmake a substantive
change in a matter of constitutional |aw

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said al though the changes are so vast, he
could not think of any concern he still has regarding the policy
call of HIR 7.

8:10: 19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CARL GATTO, Alaska State Legislature, as prine
sponsor of HIR 7, said he conducted the sane search as
Representative Coghill, after which he was assured that HIR 7
woul d do what it is intended to do.

8:11:14 AM
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL nentioned court cases, and he said there
is a point at which a huge quantitative change could be
considered a revision, which would require a constitutional
conventi on.

8:12:14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG revisited the issue he brought up
during the prior hearing on HIR 7, regarding the occurrence of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- April 10, 2007



the term "secretary of state" within HIR 7. [ He had suggested
the need to change that term and had been told that that should
not be done as part of HIR 7.] He related that subsequent to
that hearing, [his staff had] spoken with M. Chenoweth, whose
recommendati on echoed that which Representative G uenberg had
been given at the prior hearing.

8:12: 50 AM

NOCRVAN COHEN, Staff to Representative Max G uenberg, on behalf
of Representative Guenberg, explained that M. Chenoweth's
concern was that "it could then get into the area of revision

8:13:22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG recommended that the House Judiciary
Standing Committee consider the issue of gender and the
reference to secretary of state.

VICE CHAIR ROSES, after ascertaining that there was no one el se
to testify, closed public testinony.

8:14:31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL directed attention to an article in the
commttee packet, entitled, "States Bal ance He's And She's,"” and

guoted one sentence, which read as follows: "State
constitutions are |living historical docunents that need to
reflect the day and tine in which they are protecting their
citizens." For that reason, she said, she strongly supports HIR
7.

8. 15: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG directed attention to page 3, line 18

of the resolution, where "[H S]" would be del eted. He said it
woul d be awkward wit hout a replacenent such as "the election"” or
"the governor".

8:15:59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO concur r ed.

8:.16: 16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Amendnent 1 as foll ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 10, 2007



On page 3, line 18:

Bef ore "el ection”
I nsert "the governor's"

8:16: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL obj ect ed. He pointed out that the
begi nning of the sentence in question already makes nention of
"the governor"; therefore, he questioned the need to use it
agai n.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would agree to just saying "the
el ection".

VICE CHAIR ROSES announced that the commttee is anending
Amendrment 1, so that the |anguage would now read: “fol | owi ng
the el ection".

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL renoved his objection to Amendnent 1, as
anmended. There being no further objection, Anmendnent 1, as
anended, was adopt ed.

8:18: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he would vote to nove HIJR 7 out of
coommttee; however, he said he struggles with "changing the
whol e constitution this way." He explained that he can see the
benefit of the resolution, but he said any nove toward political
correctness always nmake him a little nervous. He pointed out
all the offices currently held by fermales, and he said he
under stands why the nmasculine gender is not always appropriate;
however, he related that in nost of the literature he has read,
both historical and contenporary, the word "he" refers to gender
neutral . He indicated that he supports equality, but would not
support wi ping out all references to the mal e gender.

8.23:26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL said she thinks HIR 7 is a significant step
that has nothing to do with putting one gender down or bringing
anot her up. She enphasized the necessity of recognizing
equal ity by maki ng | anguage gender neutral .

8:24:21 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 10, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG st at ed his support of HIR 7.

8:24.57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noved to report HIR 7, as anended, out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHIR 7(STA) was
reported out of the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

[ VICE CHAI R ROSES handed the gavel back over to Chair Lynn.]
8:25:21 AM

CHAIR LYNN concurred with the action of the commttee.

The commttee took an at-ease from 8:25:40 AMto 8:30: 02 AM

HIR 15-WN I 1 FILIPI NO VETS: BENEFI TS/ | MM GRATI ON

8: 30: 08 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
JO NT RESCLUTION NO 15, Supporting the passage of a Filipino
Veterans Equity Act and a Filipino Veterans Fami|ly Reunification
Act .

8:30:14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL noved to adopt the commttee substitute (CS)
for HIR 15, Version 25-LS0718\M Bannister, 4/9/07, as a work
draft.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ect ed.
8:30:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GABRI ELLE LEDOUX, Al aska State Legislature,
presented HIJR 15 as prinme sponsor. She paraphrased from her
sponsor statement, which read as follows [original punctuation
provi ded] :

This resolution from the Al aska State Legislature
respectfully urges the United States Congress to pass
the Filipino Veterans Equity Act and the Filipino
Veterans Fam |y Reunification Act.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- April 10, 2007



From 1898 wuntil 1946, the Philippine Islands were
considered a territory of the United States. During
Wrd War Il the mlitary forces of the Philippines
were drafted into service wunder the conmand of
Anmerican officers in the United States arned forces in
the Far East to fight against the Japanese invasion.
Filipino and Anerican soldiers fought side by side in
such battles as Corregidor. Many died during the 65-
mle Bataan Death March, and those who survived were
i mpri soned under i nhumane conditi ons.

Filipino Wrld War |l veterans were promsed mlitary
benefits, but after the War the United States Congress
passed t he Suppl enment al Sur pl us Appropriation
Rescission Act of 1946. The act considered the
services of Filipino Wrld War 1l veterans not to be
active service. This status change had the effect of
denying Filipino Wrld War 1[Il veterans the rights,

privileges and benefits that American World War |11
veterans received.

There have been several attenpts to reverse this
injustice. In 1990, Filipino Wrld War |l Veterans
were allowed to inmgrate to the U S. Many of themdid
and petitioned for their immediate famlies. In 2000,
they were provided with mlitary burial benefits and
in 2003 they were provided |ong overdue nedical and
nursing honme care from the U S. Dept. of Veterans
Affairs.

The Filipino Veterans Equity Act and the Filipino
Veterans Famly Reunification Act would correct a
terrible injustice by: 1) providing veterans the full
benefits they were denied; and 2) providing inmediate
relief for those veterans and their famlies who have
waited for nore than a decade wth approved
i mmgration petitions.

REPRESENTATI VE LeDOUX reviewed the changes that were nmade in

Version M The resolution, she said, used to state that
Filipino soldiers fought with American soldiers, which could be
construed to nean they fought against them Therefore, the
| anguage [on page 1, line 7,] was changed to read, "Filipino

soldiers fought shoulder-to-shoulder wth Anerican soldiers".
Furthernore, on page 3 of the resolution, the list of those
recei ving copi es was augnent ed.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 10, 2007



8:33:43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES noted that all seven nenbers of the House
State Affairs Standing Committee had signed on as [co-sponsors]
of HIR 15.

8:33: 55 AM

CHRI STI NE MARASI GAN, Staff to Representative Gabrielle LeDoux,
Al aska State Legislature, on behalf of Representative LeDoux,
prime sponsor of HIR 15, confirmed for Representative G uenberg
that "both bills" will be heard by the House and Senate Mlitary
and Veterans' Affairs Committees.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Conceptual Amendnment 1,
to send copies of the resolution to all sponsors and co-sponsors
i n each house.

8:34:56 AM

V. MARASI GAN stated her understanding that t oday, at
approximately 5:30 p.m, Eastern Standard Tine, there wll be
Wrld War Il veterans from across the United States placing a
weath at the National Wrld War |l nenorial in honor of their
fallen conrades. The following day, they will be |obbying to

get nore co-sponsors on "this particular piece of legislation."
She asked Representative Guenberg if his conceptual anmendnent
is asking that the resolution be sent to current co-sponsors.

REPRESENTATI VE CRUENBERG asked the sponsor what her w shes in
the matter are.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said she would like the resolution sent to
everyone who is a cosponsor as of the passage date.

8:35:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG [anended his original notion] by
suggesting "to add it to all sponsors and co-sponsors of ... al
four bills in Congress, as of the date the governor signs ...."

8:36: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL objected to Conceptual Amendnent 1, as
anmended, for clarification purposes.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expl ai ned:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- April 10, 2007



There are four pending bills, and ny notion is to send

copies of this resolution to all sponsors and co-
sponsors of all four pending bills. ... That would be
as of the date the governor reads this resolution and
she decides if it is a joint resolution.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL renoved his objection.
8:37:38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG renobved his objection to adopting
Version M as a work draft so that his amendnent mght be
consi der ed.

[ There being no further objection, Version M was before the
commttee, and Conceptual Anendnent 1, as anended, was treated
as adopt ed. ]

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG naned soneone whom the resol ution woul d
af fect. He noted that there is a bill that would allow the
Filipino veterans to receive United States veterans' benefits.
He recommended that the sponsor consider extending state
veterans' benefits.

8:38:37 AM

CHAIR LYNN said that m ght be good legislation to ook at in the
future. He noted that he grew up during World War |1, and he
stated that the Philippine people have been staunch allies of
the United States of Anmerica for a long tinme, and HIR 15 is the
| east the legislature can do for them

8:39: 26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL noved to report CSHIR 15, Version 25-
LSO0718\M Bannister, 4/9/07, as anended, out of comittee wth
i ndi vidual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
There being no objection, CSHIR 15(STA) was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmittee.

HB 193- POLI CE STANDARDS COUNCI L MEMBERSH P

8:39: 56 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- April 10, 2007



CHAI R LYNN announced that the last order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 193, "An Act relating to the conposition of the Al aska
Pol i ce Standards Council; and providing for an effective date."

8:40: 11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES presented HB 193 as prine sponsor. He said
the group he is nost famliar wth that governs itself is the
Prof essi onal Teacher Practices Comm ssion (PTPC). He said in
the comm ssion, peers evaluate what they do and don't do;
however, at no point in tine have a mmjority of those serving

that comm ssion been teachers. He related that HB 193 foll ows
that same use of peers. Regardi ng the Al aska Police Standards
Council (APSC), he said the bill reconmends a reduction in the

nunber of chief admnistrative officers from four to three.
Furthernore, it proposes adding three police officers to the
board, reducing the nunber of public nenbers down to three, and
elimnating "one of the other conm ssions" in order to have a
nore balanced approach to the profession. Currently,
Representative Roses noted, the standard is that the council is
conprised of conmm ssioners, chiefs, and four private citizens.
He said nore often than not those private citizens have been
retired police chiefs. Referring again to the PTPC neetings, he
noted that the people who were the hardest on policing their own

ranks were the teachers thensel ves. He stated, "And | have no
doubt in my mnd that the police officers, as well, are going to
hold their colleagues up to a high standard, and that would be
the anticipation and the expectation.” He said that was his

intent in bringing forward HB 193.
8:44.09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL directed attention to page 1, paragraph
1, which lists "correctional admnistrative officer", and
par agraph 3, which nanes "the conm ssioner of corrections”. He
asked, "It's intended, then, that you have two correctional
of ficers on this particular council ?"

8:44:41 AM

REPRESENTATIVE ROSES replied, "The way | read it is it's
currently the way it happens, yes."

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL indicated that he is wary of taking

menbers of the comunity off boards. He asked, "How many police
organi zations are in bargaining units and how many are not?"

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- April 10, 2007



8:45:34 AM

CRYSTAL NOVOTNEY, Staff to Representative Bob Roses, Al aska
State Legislature, on behalf of Representative Roses, prine
sponsor of HB 193, said she does not have that information.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL said that would be good information to
acquire.

8:46: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES suggested that John Cyr may have an answer
to that query. Notwi thstanding that, he told Representative
Coghill that he is correct that the language in the bil
specifies that the nonmnations would be made "through that
mechanism" However, he pointed out that the |anguage "doesn't

hold the governor's responsibility to only accepting those
nom nations."

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he wants to know what the bal ance
iS. If it is 50/50, he said, the conmttee may want to add
| anguage to allow other communities to make nom nati ons.

8:47:33 AM

JOHN  CYR, Executive Di rector, Publ i c Saf ety Enpl oyees
Association (PSEA), told the comrmittee that PSEA represents a
| arge nunber of police officers around state. In response to
Representative Coghill's question, he Ilisted the followng
entities represented either by PSEA or other unions: the police
officers of Anchorage, Fairbanks, Juneau, Sitka, Ketchikan,
Sol dotna, and Unal aska, the Alaska State Troopers, and airport
police and firefighters. He said there are sone smaller groups
with their own associations, such as Wasilla. He stated that he
would have no objection to "anyone submtting nanmes to the
governor."

8:48: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked M. Cyr, "Do you know of any forces
that are not in an association that's a bargaining unit?"

8:49: 09 AM
MR. CYR answered yes. He naned the followng as being
"nonrepresented”: Hai nes, Skagway, North Pole, Palmer, North

Sl ope Borough, Bethel, and Kotzebue.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- April 10, 2007



8:49:59 AM

CHAIR LYNN stated his wunderstanding that the governor could
choose a beat officer that is or is not represented.

M5. NOVOTNEY answered that is correct.

8:50: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he does not have a problem wth
recommendati ons being made, but he has concerns regarding the

smaller comunities and the change proposed in the bill [to]
"three" [fron] "[FOUR]".

8:51:32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said his office has, in connection with
other legislation, |ooked at the general difference between
"peace officer" and "police officer."” He noted that Article 2
of AS 18.65 includes all the statutes relating to the Al aska
Pol i ce Standards Council . He said the council not only covers
police, but also covers probation, parole, and correctional
of ficers. He directed attention to page 2, line 9 of the bill,
whi ch shows the term "public safety enpl oyees". He said he is

not aware if that term appears anywhere in the aforenmentioned
statute and has a definition. He asked Ms. Novotney if that
termis defined anywhere in | aw

8:53: 20 AM

M5. NOVOTNEY said she doesn't know but can search for the
answer .

8:53:47 AM

MR. CYR responded that he does not know.

8:53: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would like that term defined,
otherwi se there could be sone question as to what organizations
are covered. He asked if Village Public Safety O ficers (VPSOs)

are covered under the Al aska Police Standards Council.

MR. CYR of fered his understanding that they are. He conti nued:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- April 10, 2007



| know that the conm ssioner has had | ong discussions
with the ... APSC about changing the scope of their
job, the way they do business, advanced training -
those kinds of things - and frankly, that is one of
the concerns that has generated this as we nove into
the twenty-first century with policing. | nmean, our
menbership is very interested in how all those pieces
fit together, ... the intersection between the sworn
officer ... who <carries a gun and is totally
enpowered, and the other variations of officers that
we have across the state. And so, those are the
concerns that we bring to the table when we ask for
representati on.

8:55:14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said "police officer" is defined in AS
18. 65.290(7), which read as foll ows:

(7) "police officer"” neans

(A a full-time enployee of the state or a
muni ci pal police departnent with the authority to
arrest and issue citations; detain a person taken into
custody wuntil that person can be arraigned before a
j udge or magi st r at e; conduct i nvestigations  of
violations of and enforce crimnal |aws, regulations,
and traffic laws; search with or wthout a warrant
persons, dwellings, and other forns of property for
evidence of a crinme; and take other action consistent
wth exercise of these enunerated powers when
necessary to maintain the public peace;

(B) an officer or enployee of the Departmnment of
Transportation and Public Facilities who is stationed
at an international airport and has been designated to
have the general police powers authorized under AS
02.15. 230(a);

(C© a University of Alaska public safety officer
with general police powers authorized wunder AS
14. 40. 043;

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he wonders whether the definition
shoul d be expanded to include VPSGCs. He said, "W don't very
often have a bill that deals with the Al aska police standards
council, and it sounds like there are sone things ... that the
| egi sl ature mght want to bring up to date.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- April 10, 2007



8:56:21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said nost VPSGs are under contract wth
| ocal Native organizations. He concurred with Representative
Gruenberg that the issue should be addressed, but questioned
whether now is the best tinme to do so, since the new
commi ssioner has already said he would be |ooking at these
i ssues.

8:57:28 AM

CHAIR LYNN directed attention to a sentence on page 2,
[ beginning on line 7], which read as foll ows:

(b) When nmeking appointnents of police
officer nenbers of the council wunder (a) of this
section, the governor may consider police officers who
have been nomnated by |abor organizations that
represent public safety enpl oyees.

CHAIR LYNN asked M. Cyr if he would object to the addition of
| anguage to clarify that the governor may consider both police
officers who have been nominated by |abor organizations and
t hose who are not affiliated with | abor organizati ons.

8:58:17 AM

MR. CYR yielded to the sponsor of the bill to nake that choi ce,
but he said he would have no objection. He stated, "W would
like to see police officers represented on this commttee, and
whether they ... conme from our organization or APD or the City
of North Pole, ... | think they all have sonething in conmon and
sonmething to offer at this |evel. And that was our intent to
begin with."

8:58: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he would |like to know nore about the
various types of training.

8:59:43 AM

MR. CYR responded as foll ows:

The difference between ... a labor organization I|ike
| BEW [ I nternational Brotherhood of Electrical Wrkers]
or the Teansters is: to get an IBEW card and to be

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- April 10, 2007



trained, you need to go through their training
organi zati on and becone a nmenber before you get a job.

Wth a public sector wunion, it actually is the
opposite. Qur nenbers go to the ... acadeny in Sitka,
they work through that basic program [and] then they
: nove into the [field training evaluation program
(FTAP)] program where they're given to a field

training officer in the field .... They spend a year
basically on [on-the-job training (QJT)] and then get
a basic police certificate. They becone our nenbers

when they get their job.

So, the point you make is, | think, exactly why we are
concer ned. A lot has been nmade about the training -
how it works, is the system broken, what is happening
- and | have, in all ny testinony, said ... this is

not about the system being broken; this is about
trying to nmake it better.

Having said that, if we look at the ... graduation
rates at the academies that have gone for the |ast
four or five years, those rates have been dismally
| ow. Fol ks have been | eaving the acadeny, not because

they have failed, but because they - for whatever
reason - no longer wish to attend. The training
prograns in the field: our menbers are those field

training officers, and they talk to nme daily about the
folks that they're getting and what their concerns
[are], and who we have in the public. Those training
standards, that schooling - all of that - is handled
by the [ Al aska] Police Standards Council.

The input that we have now runs through the chain of
comand. If you are a State Trooper in Sol dotna, and
you have concerns about the training, you go to your
sergeant, who goes to the lieutenant, who goes to the

captain, who goes to the mmjor, who -- | nean, you
understand that. And yeah, that is input and that
does help ..., but what we really are interested in is

being able to sit at the table and |ook at those
progranms, and try to nake them better, so that they
are nore responsive and that we nove into the twenty-

first century together. | think this ... is critica
for Al aska. W have, as you all know, a host of
problenms out there that get worse every day - from

"met h" [ met hanphetam ne] |labs to gang violence. And I

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- April 10, 2007



guess | think that those guys who are on the ground -

whet her we represent them or not - the working police
officer who interacts every day should have a place -
a forum if you will - to sit as equals and tal k about

the prograns that affect their lives and the conmunity
at the end.

9:02: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said this is the type of discussion that
the conmttee needs to have. He stated his appreciation of
bargaining units, but admitted that he has not been one of the
greatest fans of public bargaining, even though he understands
the value of it. He expressed concern that there would be
people nominated to the standards council, but not based on
training capacity. He said he thinks bringing valuable police
officers to the council is appropriate, because they work "at
the ground level"” and know what is going on at that |evel.

9:04: 24 AM
REPRESENTATI VE ROSES said nenbers of the Alaska Retirenment

Managenent (ARM Board are noninated by |abor organizations such
as the National Education Association (NEA)-Al aska and APEA, and

"it says they 'shall' pick fromthose nomnations.” The sanme is
true regarding PTPC nanmes are forwarded by NEA-Al aska or AFT
to the governor, who "shall" choose from that |ist of nom nees.

He said there was a recent court case regarding that issue.
Representati ve Roses said he nmade certain the |anguage in HB 193
read "may" rather than "shall". He specified, "And on every one
of those boards, they do not hold a majority position on the
board; they never are going to be able, as an entity, to control

the vote. And so, ... the intent was representational."” He
stated, "It is not the intent of this bill to have sonebody
who's currently serving be renmoved. ... Wen their term expires
then the person would step in." He said he does not think

anyone has done a poor job; he just wants to inprove upon
representati on.

9:07: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked if the bill would go so far as to
allow a biologist working for the Departnment of Natura
Resources, who wi tnesses soneone dunping toxic waste, to issue a
citation.

9: 08: 38 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- April 10, 2007



M5. NOVOTNEY directed attention to language in the bill which

outlines the conposition of council. [Paragraph 4] lists "three
police officers, each of whom has been certified for five years
or nore by the council under this chapter”. She said the DNR

biologist in Representative Johnson's exanple would not "fall
into that category."”

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON poi nted out that that biologist could go
through all the training, so that in five years he/she could be
certified, without actually ever having frontline experience in
police | aw enforcenent. He continued:

O a [Departnent of Fish & Gane (ADF&5)] person who

has full police authority can carry a firearm l's
t hat soneone we want to | ook at as being on the police
standards council, when nost of their job is ... very

narrowmy targeted to game ...? And | think they would
qual i fy under "police officer."

9:09: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES responded that the critical part of
Representative Johnson's remark was whether that person had gone
through all the training, in which case he/she would qualify.
He said the distinction between those working in DNR and the
officers being discussed is that "they are certified currently
under the chapter of the council, and that they have five years
of experience." He added, "Also, nothing stops them from being
one of the public at |arge nenbers.™

9:10: 58 AM

MR CYR noted that 1in order to obtain a basic police
certificate, a person nust: graduate from acadeny, conplete the
field training officer program and spend a year on the street
doi ng police work. He said, "W're talking about professiona
police officers here."

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked if the "brown shirts" in ADF&G have
been through the acadeny.

MR. CYR answered that those enployees are actually Al aska State
Troopers and, as such, are fully certified police officers.

9:12: 25 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- April 10, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG handed out copies of AS 18.65.290(7)
[text provided previously]. He directed attention to the bill,
page 2, line 8, and said he thinks the |anguage should include
correctional officers.

9:13: 53 AM

M5. NOVOTNEY indicated that she is willing to check on that.

9:14: 18 AM

TERRY VRABEC, Executive Director, Al aska Police Standards
Council, Departnent of Public Safety, clarified that VPSGCs,
al though they receive extensive training, are not certified
police officers. He directed attention to a 2-page letter,
dated April 5, 2007, which he had sent to Representative Bill
Thomas [included in the conmttee packet]. The letter expresses
the reaction to a recent council neeting, at which M. Cyr

spoke. He paraphrased two paragraphs on the second page, which
read as follows [original punctuation provided]:

A poll of each Council nenber showed deep concern over
changing the current conposition of the Council.
Council nmenbership is extrenely concerned that PSEA is
attenpting to push Council into a "Ilabor-managenent"”
role by their use of the termequity. APSC has never
been a | abor-nmanagenent influenced group, and for good
reason. The Council is an executive |evel decision-
maki ng body that deals wth conplex decertification
matters of police, correction and probation officers.
It is these decisions that require seasoned executives
of law enforcenent, correction/probation, and of our
public, all of whom are appointed by the Governor to
provi de a necessary bal ance of professional know edge,
training with public transparency and trust.

The attenpt to renove chief admnistrative officers
and public menbers from the Council and replace them

wi th organized |abor-nom nated, line officers severely
i npi nges on t he pr of essi onal st andar ds and
certification role of the Council -- the nunber one

priority here is to mintain the public trust.
Organi zed labor's nunber one priority is to its
menber shi p.

MR. VRABEC confirmed what was nentioned earlier, that the
counci | deals wth not only police officers, but also

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- April 10, 2007



correction, probation, and parole officers, even though the
probati on and parole offices "fall under the corrections unit."
He said he has spoken with people in the commssioner's office
in the Departnent of Corrections, and that office expressed
concern that it could be losing a position on the council.
Furthernore, the office expressed that if line officers were to
be considered for police officer positions, it would like to
consider line officers for corrections officers.

MR. VRABEC said after speaking with M. Cyr, the council felt
that some issues were training related and would not change by
putting police officers on the council. He explained that even
t hough the council demands a certain anount of hours for police
acadeny and field training, it does not regulate the independent
departments' training. He suggested that sone of the |abor
enpl oyees' concerns are departnent issues that "we're not going
to be able to address, on account that it's just not in our

purvi ew. " He said the comm ssioner of DPS discussed the
possibility of having an ad hoc commttee to submt concerns to
the council, but M. Vrabec reiterated that the council will not

be able to regulate what sonme of the departnents do for
traini ng.

MR. VRABEC, in conclusion, stated that the council does not
support HB 193 at this tine.

9:18:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES said he understands there is nore involved
in this issue than just training. He enphasized the seriousness
of taking sonmeone who has worked towards a profession and no
| onger allowing themto do so. He said he does not question the
integrity of the council. He stated his concern is equal
representation. He said nedical review boards, for exanple, are
not made up solely of hospital adm nistrators, but also include
physi ci ans. Every board that nakes the decision whether or not
to renove sonmeone from a profession is nmade of peers. He said
the five police chiefs who came to his office said they think
"this becane an opportunity for the union to have a second bhite
of the apple when it canme to discipline." Representative Roses
said he told the police chiefs he agreed and that he sees the
situation as "the admnistrators having a second bite of

discipline, as well."™ Al five police chiefs, he said, voiced
concern that "a bill was brought forward when the PSEA had not
taken the tine to cone to the council and at |east request that
this council mnenbership be revised." He said HB 193 was ready

to be heard a nonth ago, but he had specifically requested that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- April 10, 2007



it be held until after the council held its April 2 neeting,
because he hoped that [PSEA and the council] would cone to sone
agreenent wthout the legislature's intervention. That did not
happen, he sai d.

9:21: 39 AM

MR. VRABEC responded that the discussion was taken seriously,
but in the end, no agreenent related to HB 193 was reached. In
response to a question from Representative Roses, he said the
current make-up of the board includes: four police chiefs, the
commi ssioner of the Departnent of Corrections, the conmm ssioner
of the Departnent of Public Safety, a designee of the Departnent
of Corrections, and four public nenbers. He nentioned the
backgrounds and experience of the public nmenbers.

9: 24: 08 AM

MR. VRABEC, in response to a question from Representative
Coghill, said even if public nenbers of the council are forner
| aw enforcenent workers, they have a different perspective and
will "come from views of their respective city or organization
...." He said the council does not get to pick its nenbers; the
governor selects them In response to a follow up question from
Representative Coghill, he said the public nenbers on the board
woul d have been part of a bargaining unit in the former
positions in |law enforcenent, but they are not now. In response
to questions from Representative Guenberg, he said his own
position is a full-time one.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Vrabec if he finds the fact
that there are no representatives of enployees on [the board] at
al I unbal anced.

MR. VRABEC answered no. He explained that the council feels
strongly that it should not be mxing |abor issues when it is
attenpting to remain neutral on council issues. He stated:

Quite often, if a chief of police had an officer that
was coming in front of council for issues, they would
either recuse thenselves, or there would be a vote to
have them taken out of the discussion or the vote for
decertification. Qur feeling is if we had |abor
organi zed individuals on the council, and a vote cane
up with one of their own prospective nenbers, that
they would also need to recuse thenselves, and that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- April 10, 2007



woul d nean several nore people who would not be
able to vote on a situation

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that the council has certain
power s. For exanple, it establishes standards for enploynent
and determ nes whether or not a person should |ose his/her
license to be police officer. He stated:

It's one thing to have only representatives of the
managenent side on that, but - and | don't care
whet her they're nenbers of a bargaining unit or not -

to have a nenber who is a police officer or
correctional officer - don't you think that would
provi de nore bal ance?

MR. VRABEC answered that the chief admnistrative officers who
serve on the council are police officers and, thus, fall under
the sane rules and regulations of all police officers in the
st at e.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that is his point. He asked, "Wy
[imt it to only thenP"

MR. VRABEC said the council and the association of police of
chiefs feel that their expertise and years of experience benefit
the council "versus the individuals as a |line officer position."

9: 29: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked how many police units, outside of
the small towns previously naned by M. Cyr, are not wthin a
bar gai ni ng unit.

MR. VRABEC estimated that there are 15-20 smaller agencies in
the state that are not affiliated with a labor unit, and they
conprised of 1-15 enpl oyees.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL said although he is in favor of the
bill's perm ssive nature, he would like to drop the reference to
"public safety enpl oyees" on page 2, line 9. He also reiterated
that he would |ike the nunmber of public nmenbers of large to be
four, while the nunber of police officers would be dropped to
t wo. He said, "I think you need the folks who are kind of the
ground pounders to be able to speak at the table."

9:33: 59 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- April 10, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN noted that the <chief of police in
Ketchikan is not a police officer, and he asked how comobn an
occurrence that is. He said theoretically there could be zero
menbers on the [council] with street experience. He asked M.
Vrabec to conment .

9:34: 34 AM

MR. VRABEC offered his understanding that Ketchikan's set up is
uni que.

9:34: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON cautioned that the bill nmay create
"another urban/rural divide" by excluding smaller conmunities
fromrepresentation. He said he thinks there are uni que aspects
of those smaller comunities that mke them deserving of

representation on the [council]. He said he also has a problem
with reducing the nunmber of public nenbers. He stated, "I do
believe that we do need a line officer or a beat officer -
sonmething that's [yet undefined]. | do believe that there needs
to be that representation on the board ...." He said the
| anguage of the bill directs; it does not nandate.

9:36:47 AM

REPRESENTATIVE ROSES said he appreci ates Representati ve
Johnson's concern regarding urban/rural divide. He directed
attention to page 2, line 4, of bill, [which shows the proposed
drop from four to three nenbers of the public at large], and he
noted that a simlar bill in the Senate dropped that nunber to

two public nenbers, while changing the nunber of police officers
to four. He pointed out that under HB 193, at |east two of the
three nenbers of the public at large would be appointed from
comunities of 2,500 population or |ess. He said he would not
be opposed to Representative Coghill's recommendation to have
four menbers of the public at |arge and two police officers.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON reiterated his concerns.
9:38: 51 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one to testify,
cl osed public testinony.

9:39: 07 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 23- April 10, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noved to adopt Amendnent 1 as foll ows:
On page 1, line 14:

Delete "t hree"
| nsert "two"

On page 2, line 4:

Delete "three [ FOUR] "
| nsert "four"

There being no objection, Arendnent 1 was adopt ed.

9:39: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON noved to adopt Conceptual Amendnent 2,
which would specify [in Section 1, paragraph 4, of the bill]
that of the two police officers, one would be froma comunity
of less than 2,500 people.

9:40: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES obj ect ed.

9:40: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL indicated that although he appreciates
Representative Johnson's sentinent, he thinks having two
[ menbers of the council fromthe public category] is sufficient.

9:40: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON sai d he thinks having public nenbers from
a smaller community is different than having a frontline officer

froma smaller community. He explained that the public nenber
may not be aware of the situations that the officer nenber has
to face. He concluded, "Wen we have the police officers -

which [are] the expertise we're trying to place on the board -
from those varying communities, we're getting a wi de variety of
di scretion throughout the state as opposed to possibly one from
Anchor age, one from Fairbanks."

9:41: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES r esponded:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- April 10, 2007



Ri ght now the governor could actually pick two that

are from small comunities. If we specify it has to
be one from each, w've Ilimted the governor's
choi ces.

| would assume that the 10 nanmes that would cone
in nomnations for these two positions would be fairly

wel | bal anced between urban and rural; ot herw se
they're cutting off their own nose to spite their
f ace.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES nmi nt ai ned hi s objection.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES, in response to Representative Johnson,

stated that across Alaska, all teachers and other education
support personnel - with the exception of one school district -
are represented by PTPC, and there has never been an issue of
uni on versus management. He said he does not see that as being
an issue with the Police Standards Practice Council either. He
sai d, "It IS in everyone's best i nt er est t hat t he
professionalism of the job be upheld and the standards be
uphel d, and the expectation is ... that there isn't a police

officer out there that doesn't want to make sure that all the
other police officers are held to a high standard, as well.
Their life depends on it."

9:44:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON clarified Conceptual Anendnent 2, then
wi t hdrew Conceptual Anmendnent 2, because he said he does not
sense there is a |lot of support for it.

9:44:56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Conceptual Anendnment 3
as foll ows:

On page 2, line 8:

Bet ween "police" and "officers"”
I nsert "and correctional”

There bei ng no objection, Conceptual Amendrment 3 was adopt ed.

9:46: 12 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- April 10, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL, in response to Representative G uenberg,
noved Anendnent 4 as foll ows:

On page 2, line 9:

Bet ween "organi zations" and "."
Del ete "that represent public safety enpl oyees”

9:46: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES responded, "The only problem with ... the
way it states right now is that NEA-Al aska could nom nate police
officers if you leave it to any |abor organization; so, | think

that we have to be specific in that the |abor organizations are
related to either police or correctional officers.”

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL enphasized the specificity of the
qualification level shown on page 1, |ine 4. He said anot her
organi zation that does not represent police or correctional
officers could not put forth those nanmes [with authority].

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES responded, "I have no problem and
believe the way it would state would be a 'labor organization
that represents police and correctional officers covered by the
council"'.™

REPRESENTATI VE COCGHILL said he would "expect that |anguage to
find its way in"; however, at this point, he said, "to leave it
in this would be confusing for us to pass it out."

9:48: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated his intent to offer a conceptual
anendnment to insert a nodifier of the phrase "l abor
organi zations". He asked the sponsor for input.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES said the APSC has authority over a certain
group of i ndividuals.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested he wanted clarification that
the | abor organi zations are those that represent people governed
by the council. He asked Representative Coghill if he would be
willing to withdraw his notion to adopt Amendnent 4.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL withdrew his notion to adopt Anmendnent 4,

al though he said he thinks Representative G uenberg' s suggested
| anguage is "messy."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- April 10, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG [noved to adopt] Conceptual Anmendnent
5, as follows:

One page 2, line 9:

Bet ween "| abor organi zations that represent” and "."
Del ete "public safety enpl oyees”

I nsert "enpl oyees governed by the council™

9:50: 16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL objected to request that the sponsor
carry that intent into the next conmttee. He said, "OQherw se,
if it comes to the floor in such a way that | can't agree, |
m ght make an anmendnent to strike Section 2."

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES r esponded, "No problem™

9:50: 47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL renoved his objection to Conceptual
Amendrent 5. There being no further objection, it was so
or der ed.

9:50: 49 AM

CHAIR LYNN said he thinks HB 193 [as anended] is a good bill
He comented that he knows from experience that the police "on
the beat"” have a different perspective than that of the police
chi ef s.

9:51:28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES noved to report HB 193, as anmended, out of
conmmttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB 193(STA) was
reported out of the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

ADJ OURNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at
9:52: 01 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- April 10, 2007



